#### COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION PROGRAM

Submission Template

Please use this template as a guide to developing your submission for funding from the Community Participation Program. The level of detail should be appropriate to your organization's proposed activities, and to the level of funding allocated for your organization.

You may provide this submission electronically to <u>ncr@minneapolismn.gov</u>. Please include a copy of your bylaws.

#### CONTACT INFORMATION:

Organization Name:	Webber-Camden Neighborhood Organization
Address:	1206 37 <sup>th</sup> Avenue North
	Minneapolis, MN 55412
Website url:	Webbercamden.org
Organization email:	info@webbercamden.org
Federal EIN:	41-1727931
Board Contact:	Name: Reverend Linda Koelman
Staff Contact:	Name: Roberta Englund

Who should be the primary contact for this submission? Roberta Englund

Date of Board review and approval: June 21, 2012

#### FUNDING ACTIVITIES.

Use the following questions as a guide for your submission. For questions 1-8, please limit each response to no more than 3 paragraphs.

1. **Eligibility.** If your organization has not previously been funded through the Community Participation Program, please provide evidence of the organization's eligibility, as identified in Section II.A of the Guidelines.

# Webber-Camden Neighborhood Organization (WCNO) has been funded before and there is no change of status.

2. **Community participation efforts.** Describe proposed outreach activity in the neighborhood, and methods to involve residents and other stakeholders in one or more of the three key program purposes. How will you engage residents and other stakeholders of their neighborhood in developing a Neighborhood Priority Plan?

Outreach activity in Webber-Camden is based in a network of partners, residents and businesses primarily at the regular monthly meetings, events, and through print and media publications, and social media outlets such as FaceBook.

The three focus areas in Webber-Camden currently, are housing, economic development and block based community leader recruitment.

Webber-Camden is participating in a Bright Ideas campaign with other northside neighborhoods, to gather resident thoughts about what needs to happen in the neighborhood to strengthen communication and build community connections.

Webber-Camden is also participating in the Northside Neighborhoods Council, a multineighborhood revitalization discussion for north Minneapolis that will help guide a Priority Plan for WCNO. Additionally, documentation of resident concerns will inform the priorities for WCNO strategies.

3. **Building organizational capacity.** How will you work to: (1) provide opportunities for the direct involvement of members, (2) build your membership and volunteer base, (3) encourage and develop new leadership, and (4) expand the organization's capacity through self-assessment and other activities?

By using the Webber-Camden Mission and Vision Statements, which are active documents that guide the work of the Organization, the Board of Directors has developed a work plan to recruit residents, through one on one engagement, to become involved in Board membership, special committee participation, event planning and implementation and community leadership.

4. **Building neighborhood relationships.** Describe your outreach, networking, and inclusivity efforts to: (1) build a sense of a whole neighborhood among residents, (2)

build bridges among neighbors and diverse communities within the neighborhood, (3) work with other neighborhoods and organizations on issues of common interest, (4) build partnerships with private and public entities, and (5) benefit the neighborhood as a whole.

WCNO actively participates in the activities of the Northside Neighborhoods Council (NNC) and the current development of North First which may have a significant, positive impact on the entire referenced neighborhood building relationships question. WCNO communicates the progress of the NNC and works to engage residents in participation in the various activities associated with North First.

Webber-Camden is a presence with very active participation in both the Hennepin County Library, Webber Park Library plans for future development and in the current Master Plan development for Webber Park. Both of these initiatives have a significant impact on the neighborhood as a whole and subsequently the residents.

5. **Involvement of under-engaged stakeholders.** Organizations should discuss which stakeholder groups are typically un-engaged or under-engaged in their work, and how they will work to involve those groups. Organizations should also discuss how the NCR Department can help with this work.

This is an ongoing discussion at WCNO; the underrepresented groups in Webber-Camden youth, and Asian residents. WCNO has connected with Patrick Henry High School that has a large minority population. The challenge is reaching the adult population to encourage participation. NCR may well be part of the solution; as WCNO continues to develop a priority plan in response to collaborative initiatives that may come forward as a result of NNC. The NCR Department would be appropriate facilitators for information gathering at semi-social venues specifically designed for Hmong residents.

Additionally, tenants are underrepresented in neighborhood activity and the outreach to that population is more specifically through block clubs and neighbor to neighbor communication.

6. **Housing Activities.** Neighborhood organizations should discuss their work on housing and housing related activities. Organizations should estimate the percentage of time to be spent on these issues.

Webber-Camden shares a dedicated focus and staff on housing and related issues with the Folwell Neighborhood. The work of a full time housing advocate and the housing focus is evident in changes to City of Minneapolis ordinance related to home ownership and rental property management and shared in the work related to the foreclosure crisis and mortgage fraud. Additionally, Webber-Camden provides home loans and ownership incentives using NRP funds, a policy that is presently under consideration for revision. One full time staff is dedicated to Housing issues.

7. **Unused funds.** Organizations should discuss how they plan to use unused funds from the previous cycle for community engagement or implementation of neighborhood priorities.

Any unused funds will be rolled over into the same line items.

8. **Budgets.** Submissions should include a budget showing how Community Participation Program funds will support the organization's community participation work and an amount set-aside for implementation of Neighborhood Priority Plans. An annual budget for the organization should also be provided.

Staff Expenses	\$65,000.00
Employee Benefits	\$3600.00
Professional Services	\$1200.
Occupancy	\$7000.
Communications/Outreach	\$3800.
Supplies and Materials	\$5800.
Festivals and events	\$9500.
Development	\$500.
Fundraising	\$1000.
Other Services	\$12,000.00
Neighborhood Priorities	\$13,165.00
TOTAL:	\$122,565.00

#### SAMPLE BUDGET

Notes:

- Staff expenses should include payroll, FICA, and withholding, or contract staff.
- Employee benefits should include any health insurance, retirement, or other benefits.
- Professional services should include the cost of temporary contractors, bookkeepers, accountants, etc.
- Occupancy should reflect costs related to rent, utilities, phone, websites and email expenses, and other similar expenses.
- Communications/Outreach should include costs of publications, printing, postage, delivery, flyers, etc.
- Supplies and materials should include office supplies as well as expenses for supplies related to ongoing programs such as block patrols, etc.

- Festivals and events can include any costs related to community events and festivals.
  Food is not an eligible expense.
- Development expenses could include costs related to training, education, recognition, or orientation for board, staff and volunteers.
- Fundraising could include any costs related to fundraising for your organization (hiring of consultants, costs of materials, postage, events, etc).
- Neighborhood Priorities: at this point you do not need to know what the priorities are. Just indicate what the organization would like to set aside at this time for future priorities.

## Attachment 1

## Webber-Camden Neighborhood Organization

#### The Mission

The mission of the Webber-Camden Neighborhood Organization is to represent resident intentions that Webber-Camden neighborhood continues as a viable city community and expresses the values of a diverse population.

The Organization will identify and utilize a wide range of resources, encourage mutually beneficial partnerships and provide opportunity for citizen participation to implement that mission.

The Organization will implement programs and initiatives in the areas of housing, community development, youth and families, education and public safety to ensure that Webber-Camden is recognized as a quality neighborhood of choice.

## The Vision

The vision of Webber-Camden as:

A clean, safe, law abiding neighborhood where residents live and work together in an atmosphere of respect and consideration.

A neighborhood with quality affordable housing where pride of ownership is evident in well maintained single family and rental properties.

A neighborhood that nurtures children, participates in their social development, encourages their academic achievement and acknowledges their accomplishments.

A neighborhood that provides support for those who need it and searches for and diligently uses resources wisely to benefit its residents.

A neighborhood that honors the contributions of art, music and recreation and encourages both participation and appreciation.

A community that exhibits concern for the natural environment and exercises wisdom, if not constraint, in planning for growth and development.

A community that defines itself as residential, proud, diverse, multigenerational, safe and sustainable.

## Attachment 2

## Webber-Camden Neighborhood Organization Bylaws 1993 Amended 1994,1995,1997,2002, 2007 and 2011.

## <u>Article</u> I NAME

The name of this organization shall be the Webber-Camden Neighborhood Organization.

## Article II PURPOSE

The purpose of the Webber-Camden Neighborhood Organization shall be to protect and promote neighborhood interests and the health, safety, and general welfare of all residents of the Webber-Camden Neighborhood in a non-partisan, educational, and cooperative manner and implement that purpose through decisions of the Board of Directors for the Organization only, or by participating in collaboration with others.

## Article III GEOGRAPHIC AREA

The geographic area of Webber-Camden Neighborhood (hereafter referred to as "Webber-Camden ") as defined by the Minneapolis Communities and Neighborhoods map approved by the Minneapolis City Council shall be: north Dowling Avenue on the south, CP Rail Road or 46<sup>th</sup> Avenue North, the Mississippi River on the east and Penn/west Newton Avenues North on the west.

## Article IV MEMBERSHIP

Eligible for individual membership in the Webber-Camden Neighborhood Organization (hereafter referred to as the Organization) shall be any person of legal voting age who:

- a. Resides in or owns property in Webber-Camden
- b. Operates or facilitates a legal business or organization located in Webber-Camden however, there shall be only one non-resident member for each legal business or organization.

Membership in the Organization shall be open to and encouraged of all interested persons who meet the above eligibility requirements. Efforts shall be made to achieve faithful representation of the racial, ethnic, and economic diversity of Webber-Camden. No person shall be denied membership in the Organization due to race, religion, color, gender, sexual preference, national origin, economic status, or disability. Membership is neither transferable nor assignable. No member shall have any vested right or interest in the term of his or her membership. Members may be required to verify their membership eligibility.

Anyone eligible for membership must consent to becoming a member and they may become a member by signing their name and providing their address on a voter registration form that is available at all meetings of the Organization. *The Organization will maintain a current membership list and must make its membership list available within 2 business days to any* 

member requesting it. The membership list cannot be used for promotional purposes unrelated to the Organization.

## V BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors (hereafter known as the Board) shall consist of not less than six members of the Organization and not more than eleven members. All Board members must be voting members of the Organization, but only two may be non-residents of Webber-Camden neighborhood. Board members shall not conduct themselves in a manner that will reflect negatively upon the Organization.

Terms on the Board shall be for two consecutive years. Board vacancies due to resignation or removal shall be filled for the remainder of the term under normal voting procedures stated in these bylaws.

When vacancies occur, elections to fill vacancies shall be publicized at least 25 days before the election can occur at the next Organization regular or quarterly meeting.

A Board member may be removed from the Board by a two-thirds vote of the entire seated membership of the Board. Such a vote shall occur at a regular meeting, or a special meeting called for that purpose, but with due notification of such action and the right to be heard thereon.

After 2 consecutive absences, a Board member will receive written notification stating that the Board will review their status and may take action to remove them from the Board if they have 3 consecutive absences.

## VI (A) MEETINGS

#### Membership

General membership meetings shall be held at least quarterly. The quarterly meetings will be held in February, May, August, and November on the first Thursday of each month, precluding a legal holiday, which then defers to the second Thursday. Notice of regular meetings and the agenda will be made available to the membership by any method deemed inclusive by the Board.

<u>Annual Meeting</u>: The general membership meeting in November shall be designated as the Annual Meeting, at which time election to the Organization's Board shall occur. There shall be 25 days publicized notification of the Annual Meeting and Board elections. The Organization's fiscal year shall be the calendar year.

All voting shall be subject to ratification by a simple majority of all eligible voters in attendance at a duly called election. All meetings shall be conducted according to Robert's Rules of Order, latest revision, when not in conflict with these bylaws. Fifty percent plus one of the members present at the time an issue is voted on constitutes a majority.

## VI (B)

## **Board of Directors**

The Board will conduct not less than one business meeting per month. The meeting(s) shall be duly publicized and open to the public, any member of the Organization and to all residents of Webber-Camden. Special meetings of the Board may be called by the Chair, the Executive

Committee or by a majority of the seated Board members. Notice of special meetings shall be given at least twenty-four hours in advance of the meeting either by mail, phone, electronic or personal contact. If Board resolutions are made without a meeting of the Board they shall be done in writing with signatures of 2/3 of the Board members to be valid.

A quorum shall consist of at least 51% of the seated Board members. Of the Board members in attendance, a simple majority is necessary to carry any motion. There shall be no proxy votes at Board meetings.

#### VII OFFICERS

There shall be four officers of the Board of Directors consisting of a Chair, Vice Chair, Secretary and Treasurer. Officers are elected at the Annual Meeting. The offices of Chair and Treasurer must be filled according to Minnesota law. These four officers shall also be known as the Executive Committee.

Vacancies are to be filled by Board appointment. Appointees are to be confirmed by a simple majority of Organization members in attendance at the next general meeting of the Organization.

An Officer may be removed by a two-thirds vote of the entire voting membership of the Board. The Board shall elect a member of the Board to fill the vacancy. . However, in such cases, 1/3 of the seated Board members may call for the officer position to be filled by election at the next general membership meeting with due notice.

The Chair shall have the power of general management of the business of the Organization and shall either preside or delegate such authority at all meetings. S/he shall see that all orders and resolutions of the Organization are carried into effect. The Chair shall be a member ex-officio of all sub-committees. The Chair shall perform all duties usually incident to that office and such other duties as the Organization may prescribe.

The Vice-Chair is a member of the *Executive Committee* in secession to the Chair and shall perform the duties of the chair in the event that the Chair is unable to do so and to perform other duties as the Organization may prescribe.

The Secretary is a member of the Executive Committee and is responsible for keeping records of Board actions, including overseeing the taking of minutes at all board meeting, sending out meeting announcements, distributing copies of minutes and the agenda to each Board member and assuring that corporate records are maintained and shall perform such other duties as the Organization may prescribe.

The Treasurer is a member of the Executive Committee and is responsible to assure accurate accounts are kept of all moneys of the Organization received or disbursed. The Treasurer shall be responsible for supervising the receipt, deposit, and disbursement of the Organization's funds in accordance with the financial policies and procedures established by the Organization. The Treasurer shall, whenever required, provide to the Organization an account of the financial condition of the Organization and shall perform such other duties as the Organization may prescribe. When applicable, the Treasurer shall submit to the CPED, NRP, or other worthy agency an independent audit done by a professional Certified Public Accountant.

#### **VIII COMMITTEES**

Section 1: The Board may create committees as needed, such as fundraising, housing, etc. The Board Chair appoints all committee chairs.

When a committee is created, the Board by formal action shall: Identify the committee as either standing or special, define the purpose of the committee and appoint a committee chair. All Committees shall report to the Board on a monthly basis. Any proposed action by any committee that financially obligates or otherwise defines the Organization in any way requires approval through a formal action by the Board.

With the exception of the Bylaws and Finance Committees, committee-membership is open to the membership of Organization.

Section 2: The four officers serve as the members of the Executive Committee. Except for the power to amend the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws, the Executive Committee shall have all of the powers and authority of the Board of Directors in the intervals between meeting of the Board, subject to the direction and control of the Board of Directors.

Section 3: Finance Committee. The Treasurer is chair of the Finance Committee, which includes three other Board Members. The Finance Committee is responsible for developing and reviewing fiscal procedures, a fundraising plan and annual budget with staff and other Board members. The Board must approve the budget and all expenditures must be within the budget. The Board or the Executive Committee must approve any major change in the budget. The fiscal year shall be the calendar year. Annual reports are required to be submitted to the Board showing income, expenditures and pending income. The financial records of the organization are public information and shall be made available to the membership, Board and the public.

#### IX AMENDMENTS

Amendments to these bylaws may be adopted by the general membership of the Organization at any meeting for which at least seven days' prior notice shall be given. The notice shall include the content of the proposed bylaw change. A 2/3 majority of the members present and voting is needed for any amendment to pass. Notwithstanding the provisions cited above, these bylaws are not subject to change or amendment at any time by the general membership or Directors of the Organization board.

## X COMPLAINTS

Any complaints against the Organization, or any of its activities, must be made in writing and directed to a meeting of the Organization, which shall act upon the merits of the complaint within thirty days.

## XI LIABILITIES

No officer or member of the Board shall in any way be personally liable or responsible for any debt or obligation imposed or incurred by, or on behalf of, the Organization.

Conflict of Interest, Indemnification and Non-Discrimination Policy

**Section 1.** <u>Conflict of Interest</u>. The Webber-Camden Neighborhood Organization (WCNO) recognizes that members participate because of a personal or professional interest in the work

of the Organization. Webber-Camden Neighborhood Organization encourages these individuals to participate, however, actual and potential conflicts of interest shall be fully disclosed. A conflict of interest shall arise in any of the following situations:

- A. An actual or proposed contract or transaction between WCNO and a member or any of the immediate family of the member or alternate.
- B. An actual or proposed contract or transaction between WCNO and an organization of which a member or alternate or any of the immediate family of the member or alternate is a director, officer, legal representative or has a material financial interest.

Any conflict of interest or potential for a conflict of interest shall be fully disclosed in a timely manner to the WCNO by the member. A member shall not vote or participate in the discussion of any action that constitutes an actual or potential conflict of interest. The Board may authorize, approve, or ratify a contract or transaction that constitutes a conflict of interest only upon full disclosure and upon consensus reached without the member subject to the conflict of interest.

Section 2. <u>Definitions</u>. The following definitions apply to this Article:

- A. <u>Material Financial Interest</u>. A member has a material financial interest in any organization in which the member has rights to payment of dividends, profit-sharing, compensation, reimbursement of expenses, or repayment of obligations or other liabilities.
- B. <u>Immediate Family</u>. Immediate family encompasses the following individuals: spouses, parents, children, children's spouses, siblings, or spouses of siblings.

**Section 3.** <u>Indemnification</u>. To the fullest extent permitted by Minnesota law, the WCNO shall indemnify and hold harmless every party serving in a capacity for WCNO for any and all costs incurred in connection with the defense of any action, suit, or proceeding in which he or she may be made a party or a witness by reason of their official capacity with the organization. The WCNO shall purchase and maintain insurance sufficient to cover such costs.

#### Non-Discrimination Policy

**Section 1.** <u>Non-Discrimination Policy</u>. The WCNO will not tolerate or support discrimination of any kind. The activities of the WCNO shall not discriminate against any person because of: race; color; creed; religion; ancestry; nation origin; sex; affectional ; physical, mental or emotional disability or other handicap; age; marital status; or status with regard to public assistance.